
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Wednesday, 17 July 2019. 
 01476 406080

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Thursday, 25 July 2019 at 1.00 pm
Shekinah Room - Jubilee Church Life Centre, 1-5 London 

Road, Grantham. NG31 6EY

Members: Councillor Jacky Smith, Chairman of the Council (Chairman)
Councillor Breda Griffin, Vice-Chairman of the Council (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor David Bellamy
Councillor Chris Benn
Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth
Councillor Robert Broughton
Councillor George Chivers
Councillor Louise Clack
Councillor Kelham Cooke
Councillor John Cottier
Councillor Helen Crawford
Councillor John Dawson
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Barry Dobson
Councillor Mike Exton
Councillor Paul Fellows
Councillor Helen Goral

Councillor Jan Hansen
Councillor Graham Jeal
Councillor Gloria Johnson
Councillor Mrs Rosemary 
Kaberry-Brown
Councillor Anna Kelly
Councillor Ms Jane Kingman
Councillor Philip Knowles
Councillor Matthew Lee
Councillor Nikki Manterfield
Councillor Annie Mason
Councillor Penny Milnes
Councillor Virginia Moran
Councillor Charmaine Morgan
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Councillor Robert Reid
Councillor Nick Robins
Councillor Susan Sandall
Councillor Ian Selby

Councillor Mrs Judy Smith
Councillor Lee Steptoe
Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor Adam Stokes
Councillor Ian Stokes
Councillor Jill Thomas
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-
Bellew
Councillor Sarah Trotter
Councillor Dean Ward
Councillor Hannah Westropp
Councillor Hilary Westropp
Councillor Amanda Wheeler
Councillor Mark Whittington
Councillor Jane Wood
Councillor Paul Wood
Councillor Sue Woolley
Councillor Linda Wootten
Councillor Ray Wootten

Agenda
For those Councillors who wish to attend, prayers will be held in the Shekinah Room at 
12:55pm before the commencement of the meeting. Please be seated by 12:50pm.

Council

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1.  Public Open Forum
The public open forum will commence at 1.00 p.m. and the following formal 
business of the Council will commence at 1.30 p.m. or whenever the public open 
forum ends, if earlier.

2.  Apologies for Absence

3.  Disclosure of Interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4.  Minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2019 (Pages 3 - 15)

5.  Communications (including Chairman's Announcements) (Page 17)

6.  Meetings of the Cabinet
Report of the Leader of the Council on minutes of Cabinet meetings approved 
since 27 June 2019.

(Pages 19 - 27)

7.  Members' Open Questions
A 45-minute period in which members may ask questions of the Leader, Cabinet 
Members, the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees and opposition group leaders excluding the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman of the Development Management Committee, Licensing and Alcohol, 
Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment Licensing Committees and 
Governance and Audit Committee.

8.  Notices of Motion  given under Article 4.9:

a)  Councillor Phil Dilks (Pages 29 - 30)

This Council resolves to:

1. Instruct the Chief Executive to write to all Lincolnshire MPs to 
lobby for a fairer funding settlement for Lincolnshire Police 
particularly given the Police and Crime Commissioner’s warning 
of a £6.5 million funding gap next year.

2. Formally invite the Police and Crime Commissioner to an 
evidence-based scrutiny of all aspects of crime and policing 
across South Kesteven. Council requests that in light of recent 
events and to ensure public confidence, it would be inappropriate 
for scrutiny of policing to be chaired by Councillor Ray Wootten.

3. Urge the Leader of the Council to consider replacing Councillor 
Wootten as the Council’s representative on the Police and Crime 
Panel to ensure that the public – and this council – can have 
confidence that future information provided regarding policing and 
police funding is accurate and properly researched.

The deadline for notices of motion for the Council meeting on Thursday 26 September 2019 is 1pm on 
Friday 13 September 2019.



Present
Councillor Jacky Smith, Chairman

Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor David Bellamy
Councillor Chris Benn
Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth
Councillor Robert Broughton
Councillor George Chivers
Councillor Louise Clack
Councillor Kelham Cooke
Councillor John Cottier
Councillor Helen Crawford
Councillor John Dawson
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Barry Dobson
Councillor Mike Exton
Councillor Paul Fellows
Councillor Helen Goral
Councillor Breda Griffin
Councillor Jan Hansen
Councillor Graham Jeal
Councillor Anna Kelly
Councillor Ms Jane Kingman
Councillor Philip Knowles
Councillor Nikki Manterfield

Councillor Annie Mason
Councillor Penny Milnes
Councillor Virginia Moran
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Councillor Robert Reid
Councillor Nick Robins
Councillor Susan Sandall
Councillor Ian Selby
Councillor Mrs Judy Smith
Councillor Lee Steptoe
Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor Adam Stokes
Councillor Ian Stokes
Councillor Jill Thomas
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew
Councillor Sarah Trotter
Councillor Dean Ward
Councillor Hilary Westropp
Councillor Amanda Wheeler
Councillor Mark Whittington
Councillor Sue Woolley
Councillor Linda Wootten
Councillor Ray Wootten

Officers Officers

Chief Executive (Aidan Rave)
Strategic Directors (Debbie Muddimer, 
Paul Thomas)
Assistant Chief Executives (Ken Lyon, 
Lee Sirdifield)

Assistant Director, Resources (Richard 
Wyles)
Interim Head of Legal (Shahin Ismail)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

Minutes
COUNCIL
THURSDAY, 27 JUNE 2019
1.00 PM

3

Agenda Item 4



17. Public Open Forum

Question 1

From: Phil Gadd, Grantham
To: Councillor Barry Dobson, the Cabinet Member for Housing

“On 1st April 2016 a policy was instigated by SKDC for use of community rooms to 
regulate use. Part of this involved a charge for the use or hire of the rooms at the 
sheltered or communal facilities. Any money raised was to be split 40% admin whilst 
60% of the revenue was to be returned via the 'Residents Initiatives Fund' 

The principle behind the fund was to ‘promote social, health and wellbeing for 
residents’.  This was approved by council on 10th March 2016.

SKDC reply to me on 14 March 2019 regarding money raised from the 'Residents 
Initiatives Fund'

1/ The total amount raised through this each year is:

2017/18: £12,648 (60% = £7588)
2018/19: £14,322 (60% = £8593)

No money has been 'sent back' to date from the fund. The policy underlying 
this is currently being reviewed.

1/ Could you please explain why SKDC has levied over £27000 on residents to 
improve facilities, yet nothing has been returned?

2/ What is the result of the review and when will the money be used as intended?”

The Cabinet Member for Housing said the total sum collected was approximately 
£30,000, which would be spread across approximately 30 schemes. It was hoped 
that the total funds would be spent by December 2019 and Members were advised 
that one scheme had already benefitted through the provision of a pool table. 

Mr. Gadd asked how the funding could be accessed as residents were concerned 
that the money had been lost. The Cabinet Member for Housing stated schemes 
would be advised that funding was available, and applications invited for its use.

Question 2

From: Phil Gadd, Grantham
To: Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy Leader of the Council

“I understand at last month’s Full Council Meeting (23/5) that a motion was raised 
regarding rising crime and additional police funding for the SKDC area. When I asked 
for the voice recording about that debate I was told that the Jubilee Centre does not 

4



have that facility. This has prevented any scrutiny by the public of the actual 
statements made regarding that meeting.

Following release of the Council minutes it was stated that an additional £10 million 
pounds had been made available following a meeting of Lincs PCC with the Home 
Office on 21st May 2019. 

I have an FOI reply (04/2019) from the Lincs PCC on 20th June  

Q/Have Lincs Police been awarded a further £10 million pounds from Central 
Government or is this 'new' funding actually from the recent 11% increase in Local 
Council Tax increases.

RESPONSE:  The Police and Crime Commissioner did not receive an additional 
£10 million in funding either from Central Government or from the Council Tax 
precept.  

I also asked Bill Skelly, Lincolnshire Chief Constable in an email on 26/5/19 if -
“Lincs Police had won an additional £10 million in EXTRA funding after a 
meeting of Marc Jones with the Home Secretary on Tuesday 21st May 2019”

He replied on 28/5/19 

Thank you for emailing me regarding the funding for Lincolnshire Police to ask 
for clarification on the situation.

‘My current understanding is that the PCC has been misinterpreted’
                                            -----------------------------------------------------

Therefore, could you please explain where this figure of £10million pounds 
comes from?  

Also, have the PCC comments been misinterpreted?”

The Deputy Leader of the Council stated that the information provided by Councillor 
Wootten on 23 May 2019 had been given in good faith. He clarified that there had 
been a miscommunication between the Police and Crime Commissioner and 
Councillor Wootten, which had led to the wrong figures being shared. The £10m 
increase in funding, which was referred to by Councillor Wootten, related to the 
difference between the 2016/17 budget and the budget for the current year. The 
Deputy Leader also confirmed that, as stated by Councillor Wootten, the Police and 
Crime Commissioner had met with the Home Secretary. Following that meeting, 
confirmation had been received of the award of a one-off grant for £1.8m.

Mr. Gadd referred to the difference in budget as an inflationary increase as opposed 
to the one-off grant, which provided extra, additional funding. He stated that 
Lincolnshire Police had been using its reserves to sustain the same level of policing. 
He also referred to a comment that was made at the previous meeting about South 

5



Kesteven being a safe place to live and crime figures for the area, which indicated an 
increase in the crime rate. In response to a request made by Mr. Gadd, the Deputy 
Leader agreed to confirm the information that he had provided in writing.

18. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Adams, Johnson, Kaberry-
Brown, Lee, Morgan, Hannah Westropp, Jane Wood and Paul Wood.

19. Disclosure of Interests

No interests were disclosed.

20. Minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2019

The minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2019 were proposed, seconded and 
agreed as a correct record.

21. Communications (including Chairman's Announcements)

The Council noted the Chairman’s engagements.

22. Appointment of statutory officers

The Deputy Leader began by paying tribute to the outgoing Section 151 Officer, 
Debbie Muddimer. Originally appointed on an interim basis, Ms Muddimer 
subsequently took on the appointment on a permanent basis. The Deputy Leader 
wished Ms. Muddimer luck as she took on a new role as Deputy Finance Officer at 
De Montford University in Leicester. He thanked her for her service, praising the way 
that she had challenged budgets and the relationships she had developed with 
Members and officers. On the Council’s behalf, the Deputy Leader presented Ms. 
Muddimer with flowers to thank her for her service, whilst the wider membership 
showed their appreciation with a round of applause. 

13:22 - Richard Wyles and Shahin Ismail left the meeting because the item about to 
be discussed concerned their proposed appointment to statutory officer posts

The Deputy Leader proposed the recommendations of the Employment Committee 
as set out in the report of the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee was 
recommending the appointment of Richard Wyles as Section 151 Officer and Shahin 
Ismail as the Council’s Monitoring Officer. In making the proposition, Members were 
given a precis of their respective qualifications for the roles. Thanks were also 
proffered to  Lee Sirdifield, who had been acting as the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
on an interim basis. The proposition was seconded.

Members were given an opportunity to ask questions and debate the proposals. The 
comments about the outgoing Section 151 Officer were echoed and the proposed 

6



appointment of Mr. Wyles received wider endorsement, with reference being made to 
his long service at the Council.

In response to questions that were asked, the Deputy Leader explained that the 
Employment Committee had considered a range of options for making the 
appointments, including whether to go to competitive advert, making interim 
appointments and providing development opportunities for officers who were already 
employed by the Council. Confirmation was given that Ms. Ismail would continue to 
work on a part-time basis. To address concerns about whether the proposed 
appointment of the Monitoring Officer was compliant with requirements in the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989, Members were advised that Ms. Ismail was 
employed by the Council through the Local Government Shared Services 
Framework, which made her eligible for the appointment.

A vote was taken and the Council AGREED:

1. To approve the appointment of Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer, to the 
post of Section 151 Officer for a period of 15 months

2. To approve the appointment of Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal as the 
Monitoring Officer 

13:28 – Richard Wyles and Shahin Ismail returned to the meeting

23. Budget Framework Amendment 2019/20

The Cabinet Member for Finance proposed the recommendations in his report on the 
Budget Framework Amendment 2019/20. He explained that the proposals that were 
put before Council followed on from the Cabinet meeting on 7 March 2019 and the 
decision to develop the leisure offer in the district.

A number of Members stated that they welcomed the provision of new leisure 
facilities and asked questions about the proposals. A summary of responses and 
comments is provided below:

 The external consultancy support for the development of new leisure centres 
for the four market towns was intended to be procured through a framework 
agreement

 The Council already had a working relationship with the provider of the 
external consultancy services 

 The budget would cover the production of a business case, technical work and 
survey work. It would also include options appraisals, an assessment of 
delivery options and methods of procurement for each project

 The proposed £250k for the provision of external consultancy services 
represented less than 1% of the £35m projected cost of the project

 The mix of facilities and the order in which they would be delivered was to be 
determined as part of the feasibility work and through consultation

 Artist’s impressions of the new facilities were available in the public domain

7



 It was not yet possible to get an indication of timescales as negotiations were 
ongoing

 No decision had been made on what would happen in respect of the leisure 
facilities for Grantham; consultation would identify whether the existing centre 
should be enhanced, a replacement facility provided on the existing site or a 
new facility provided on a different site

The proposition was put to the vote and the Council AGREED:

To approve the following changes to the 2019/20 budget framework:

 £11,000 for the development of a new cycling strategy through the Sustrans 
Charity

 £100,000 to provide adequate resources in order to progress the programme 
to enhance ‘leisure opportunities for everyone’

 £30,000 to undertake a full consultation exercise around the options for the 
proposed leisure offer

 £250,000 for external consultancy support to develop the leisure proposals 
with respect to Stamford, Bourne, the Deepings and Grantham

 £50,000 for the funding of Town Centre Investment initiatives
 The funding of the additional £441,000 to be financed from the Local Priorities 

Reserve for 2019/20 only

24. Governance and Audit Committee Annual Report for 2018/19 and work 
programme for 2019/20

The Chairman of the Governance and Audit Committee asked Council to approve the 
Committee’s Annual Report for 2018-19 and its indicative work programme for 
2019/20. The proposition was seconded and, on being put to the vote, the Council 
AGREED to:

1. Approve the Annual Report of the Governance and Audit Committee for 2018-
19 

2. Approve the indicative work plan and timetable for 2019-20 which reflect the 
terms of reference of the Committee

25. Recommendations from Constitution Committee

The Chairman of the Constitution Committee stated that she wished to withdraw the 
recommendations made by the Committee at its meeting on 10 June 2019 in respect 
of the terms of reference for the new Companies Committee. She indicated that the 
Committee would like to reconsider the draft terms of reference in the context of the 
Articles of Association of each of the Council’s companies to ensure that they 
complemented one another. She also indicated that the Committee wanted to 
consider the relationship between the companies, the Companies Committee and the 
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny function. This was seconded and a vote taken 
through which the Council AGREED:

8



1. To withdraw the item from this agenda to enable further consideration by the 
Constitution Committee

26. Updates to membership of the Council's committees

The report of the Leader of the Council on updates to membership of the Council’s 
Committees related to changes to committee appointments for the Conservative 
Group. Councillor Judy Smith was being appointed to the Culture and Visitor 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee to replace Councillor Susan Sandall, 
while Councillor Judy Smith would be replaced on the Constitution Committee by 
Councillor David Bellamy.

The Deputy Leader also informed Members that, as Councillor Sandall had left the 
Conservative Group, she would be replaced on the Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee by Councillor Linda 
Wootten.

The Council noted the changes to the membership of its committees.

27. Meetings of the Cabinet

Members were asked to note the Leader’s report which brought the approved 
minutes of Cabinet meetings before Members. 

The attached minutes related to the Cabinet meeting held on 7 March 2019 and 
included decisions relating to leisure provision. Further to the earlier item on 
amendments to the budget framework 2019/20, additional questions were put about 
the appointment of the external consultant. Whilst it was noted that the consultant 
was appointed from a list within a framework and with which the Council already had 
a working relationship, Members were interested in whether alternatives had been 
considered. The Council was advised that other alternatives had been considered, 
but, as the Council was already working with this consultant and they had a good 
understanding of the project, it would have been foolhardy to start from scratch with a 
different supplier.

Reference was made to comments in the minutes relating to “the health 
conversation”. Members noted that this should be the Healthy Conversation, which 
was a specific programme being run by the NHS in Lincolnshire.

Members of the Council noted the report and the attached minutes.

28. Members' Open Questions

Question 1

Councillor Dilks referred to the motion he put to the last meeting of Council and the 
question raised during the public open forum in respect of Lincolnshire Police. He 
stated that his motion had been brought forward seeking additional funding and 

9



scrutiny of policing in the area in light of cuts that were taking place and the context 
of increases in the rate of crime in the area. He said that on the basis of a comment 
made by Councillor Wootten on additional funding that had been secured when the 
Police and Crime Commissioner had met with the Home Secretary, his motion had 
been defeated. He stated that since the meeting it had come to light that the one-off 
grant was not as high as was indicated at the meeting. Reference was also made to 
comments in the speech that stated that there would be no cuts to the number of 
police officers and information received from Lincolnshire Police in response to a 
Freedom of Information request that indicated that by the end of the year there would 
be 50 fewer full-time police officer, 23 fewer PCSOs and fewer support staff. 
Councillor Dilks asked what the Council was going to do, as it had made its decision 
based on false information and asked for the Council’s representative on the Police 
and Crime Panel to make a statement of apology and note the latest crime figures, 
with specific reference being made to incidences of violent and sexual crime. 

The Deputy Leader responded to the question expressing his concern about the 
reported crime levels. He stated that it was unfair to comment when Councillor 
Wootten was not present but that he was aware Councillor Wootten did have a 
statement that he would provide to the Council. The Police and Crime Commissioner 
had also contacted the Council to apologise for his part in the misunderstanding. The 
Deputy Leader suggested that debate could be undertaken by the relevant overview 
and scrutiny committee with the Police and Crime Commissioner being invited to 
attend to explain his plans for the area. He added that the Police and Crime 
Commissioner was speaking to MPs about a new funding formula to ensure that the 
county got its fair share of funding. 

Another Member echoed that it was unfair to make comments about a Member when 
they were not present to respond. Councillor Wootten’s work as the Council’s 
representative on the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel was praised.  It was 
hoped that when Councillor Wootten arrived he would be given the opportunity to 
provide an explanation to Council.

Question 2

Councillor Selby invited the Deputy Leader to the South Kesteven Charity Cup 
football match. Matches were scheduled on 13 July 2019 and 20 July 2019. The 
Deputy Leader stated that he would try and find the opportunity to attend and 
congratulated Councillor Selby on his work on the initiative, referring to the positive 
feedback that he had heard.

Question 3

Councillor Steptoe referred to the change in start time of meetings of full Council from 
2pm to 1pm. He asked what consultation had been undertaken with other Members 
and the public to inform the change and referred to the impact of the 1pm start time 
on Members who worked full time.

10



This question led to broader discussion and debate. Several members indicated that 
they had been consulted on the change of start time and referred to conversations in 
which they had been involved.

Those members who were supportive of the change stated that it was helpful for 
Councillors with caring responsibilities. They also considered it helpful for Members 
who had commitments in the evening, which meant that they had previously left 
meetings before the end. Reference was made, in particular, to some of the longer 
meetings of Council that had begun at 2pm and run until 7pm. It was specifically 
noted that the Chairman often attended evening engagements while other Members 
attended meetings of parish councils. Several Members also stated that it was the 
Chairman’s meeting and it was for the Chairman to determine its start time.

Those members who did not support the change had found it harder to arrange time 
off work and considered it disrupted the whole day rather than just the afternoon. 
They suggested that wider consultation should be carried out to identify a start time 
preferred by a majority of Members.

The Chairman stated that she had received feedback on the timing of the meeting 
and had been prepared to try bringing it forward. A comment was made that the start 
time of full Council could be considered by the Constitution Committee. It was 
acknowledged that no start time would suit all Members. Members noted that the 
revised time of 1pm was presented at the annual meeting of the Council and agreed 
with the programme of meetings for 2019/20. She said that at the end of the year, the 
start time could be reviewed in the context of evidence gathered through the year on 
attendance of Members at the meeting.

29. Notices of Motion given under Article 4.9 of the Council's Constitution:

(a) Councillor Ashley Baxter

Councillor Baxter presented his motion: 

“This Council resolves:

a) To adopt the Woodland Trust’s Charter for Trees and the ten principles within 
it

b) To develop a Tree Strategy for South Kesteven”

In doing so he referred to the district’s historic relationship with trees, including the 
provenance of the word “Kesteven” and the Carta Foresta, which was an addendum 
to the Magna Carta and a copy of which was displayed in Lincoln. He also spoke 
about the role of the Woodland Trust within the district and its Charter for Trees, 
which was signed in Lincoln 800 years after the Carta Foresta. The first part of the 
motion asked the Council to adopt the Charter for Trees; he indicated that other 
councils and local authorities had already signed up to the principles, including 
parishes within South Kesteven. The second part asked the Environment Overview 

11



and Scrutiny Committee to work on the development of a Tree Strategy for South 
Kesteven. He said he had brought the motion before Council following a request to 
include trees on the work programme for the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. The version of the document with which he was supplied had not 
included the item, so, he stated, he decided to bring the matter to Council. Reference 
was made to the first meeting of that Committee at which Members agreed that trees, 
hedgerows and biodiversity would form a key part of its work programme and support 
the wider climate change agenda. The motion was seconded.

The Chairman of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee stated that the 
matter had been included on the work programme however an incorrect version had 
been circulated to Members, from which the item on trees had been omitted. 

Some Members who spoke against the proposition stated that it should have come 
forward through the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an 
assessment of the potential financial implications. It was suggested that, by going 
through the overview and scrutiny process, Council would be provided with greater 
detail and background information that could help inform its decision and ensure that 
any actions  could be carried out to the best of the Council’s ability. Those members 
made it clear that they would not be against the Council signing up to the Charter in 
the future but indicated that needed more information before they could make that 
decision. They suggested that it might be helpful if the Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee invited representatives from the Woodland Trust who could 
assist Members in their considerations

Other members who spoke referred to tree planting events and initiatives in which 
they had been involved and their previous experience of working with the Woodland 
Trust. 

Members who spoke in support of the motion stated that the Council agreeing to 
support the principles within the Charter for Trees would not commit the Council to 
expenditure, but show support to the Woodland Trust, a key organisation within the 
district and demonstrate the Council’s commitment to protecting and promoting trees.

The proposer of the motion was given the opportunity to sum up. In doing so he said 
that the matter should not be political and there was no reason why people should 
not vote in support of it and that there was no cost to signing-up to the Charter. He 
suggested that if the Council agreed to sign-up to the Charter it would bolster the 
work programme of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

A request was made that a recorded vote be taken. As the request was supported by 
more than ten Members of the Council, in accordance with Article 4.13.4 of the 
Council’s Constitution, a recorded vote was taken.

For: Councillors Baxter, Bisnauthsing, Clack, Dilks, Fellows, Hansen, Kelly, Knowles, 
Moran, Steptoe and Wheeler (11)

12



Against: Councillors Bellamy, Benn, Bosworth, Chivers, Cooke, Cottier, Crawford, 
Dawson, Dobson, Exton, Goral, Griffin, Jeal, Kingman, Manterfield, Mason, Dr.  
Moseley, Reid, Robins, Jacky Smith, Adam Stokes, Ian Stokes, Thomas, Trotter, 
Ward, Hilary Westropp, Woolley and Linda Wootten (28)

Abstain: Councillors Broughton, Milnes, Sandall, Selby, Judy Smith, Stevens, 
Trollope-Bellew and Whittington (8)

(Councillor Ray Wootten was not present in the meeting room when the recorded 
vote was taken)

The vote was lost and it was AGREED:

That the Council did not support the motion submitted by Councillor Baxter.

(b) Councillor Jan Hansen

Councillor Hansen proposed his motion:

a) “The Council instructs our Chief Executive to write to each of our local MPs in 
order to voice our concerns as a Council, not only of the historical unjust 
treatment we have been receiving from central government with regards to 
funding, but also to highlight our concerns regarding what appears to be a lack 
of solidarity amongst the county’s MPs in showing support for this campaign

b) To invite the appropriate Chairman of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, to carry out research in order to ascertain exactly how much this 
Council has had its grants from central government reduced over the past 4 
years”

In proposing his motion, Councillor Hansen referred to the disparity in funding per 
head of population between urban and rural areas. He spoke about the impact of this 
disparity on the delivery of public services within the county. Reference was made to 
the ‘Rural Fair Share Campaign’, which was formed by a cross-party group of MPs 
who represented mainly rural areas with the objective of helping ensure rural 
counties received a fair share of national resources. He stated that of the seven MPs 
who represented Lincolnshire, three had signed-up to the campaign. He asked 
Council to support the motion to do its best for residents within the district and to 
ensure officers had the funds to deliver services. The proposition was seconded.

Reference was made to the Fairer Funding for Lincolnshire campaign, which was 
being led by Lincolnshire County Council with the support of the district councils in 
the county. The programme had been running for approximately two years and it was 
suggested that the Council would be better served by resolving its commitment to 
this campaign over the national ‘Rural Fair Share Campaign’. On the back of the 
programme, five Lincolnshire MPs, council leaders and the Minister for Local 
Government met with the Secretary of State to put forward the case for fairer funding 
for Lincolnshire. An amendment was therefore proposed and seconded:

13



“The Council asks the Leader to reaffirm our support for the Lincolnshire Fairer 
Funding campaign by writing to our local Members of Parliament.”

Members sought clarification that the Fairer Funding for Lincolnshire was a separate 
programme to the Rural Fair Share Campaign and that the amendment would see 
letters being sent to all Lincolnshire MPs. 

All Members who spoke referred to the history of campaigning for fairer funding in 
Lincolnshire. Members who spoke against the amendment felt it diluted the original 
proposition. Reference was made to the reduction in local government funding over 
the past 10 years and the impact of those cuts on the delivery of services, as such, 
support was expressed for the original proposition which included a review to 
establish the total amount of grant funding lost over this period.

One Member who had been involved in the campaign as a County Councillor gave 
an analogy to illustrate the different levels of funding for London Boroughs, 
metropolitan councils, unitary authorities and two-tier areas and stated that 
Lincolnshire was the second-worst funded county in the country. He also referred to 
his experience as a member of the Rural Services Network and the activity in which it 
had been involved to push forward the fairer funding agenda. He stated that the 
review of the funding formula by civil servants was underway but felt it was important 
to support the amended motion.

The proposer of the original motion was given the opportunity to sum up on the 
amendment. He referred to all of the public services operating within Lincolnshire and 
the impact of reduced funding levels, and consequent reductions in services, on 
members of the public. He said that the Council owed it to its residents to take action 
and show its support and that lobbying its representatives in Westminster was a good 
way to do this.

A request was made that a recorded vote be taken on the amendment. As the 
request was supported by more than ten Members of the Council, in accordance with 
Article 4.13.4 of the Council’s Constitution, a recorded vote was taken.

For: Councillors Bellamy, Benn, Bosworth, Broughton, Chivers, Cooke, Cottier, 
Crawford, Dawson, Dobson, Exton, Goral, Griffin, Kingman, Manterfield, Mason, Dr. 
Moseley, Reid, Robins, Jacky Smith, Judy Smith, Stevens, Adam Stokes, Ian Stokes, 
Thomas, Trollope-Bellew, Trotter, Ward, Hilary Westropp, Whittington, Woolley, 
Linda Wootten and Ray Wootten (33)
 
Against: Councillors Baxter, Bisnauthsing, Clack, Dilks, Fellows, Kelly, Knowles, 
Milnes, Moran, Sandall, Selby, Steptoe and Wheeler (13)

Abstain: Councillor Hansen (1)

(Councillor Jeal had left the meeting prior to the recorded vote being taken)

14



The vote was carried, and the amendment became the substantive motion. A vote 
was taken on the substantive motion, which was also carried, and it was AGREED 
that:

The Council asks the Leader to reaffirm our support for the Lincolnshire Fairer 
Funding campaign by writing to our local Members of Parliament.

30. Close of meeting

The meeting was closed at 15:25.

15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

List of Chairman’s Engagements 
 

28 June 2019 – 25 July 2019 
 
 
 

Date Ref Organisation and Event Location 

Thursday 
27.06.19  

JS0008 “Rotary Swimarathon” Presentation of 
Grants 

St Wulfram’s Church, 
Grantham 

Sunday 
30.06.19 

JS0014 Mayor of Stamford – Mayor’s Sunday St Mary’s Church, Stamford 

Tuesday 
16.07.19 

JS0019 Walton Girl’s High School Visual Arts 
Summer Exhibition 2019 

Walton Girls School, 
Grantham 

Thursday 
18.07.19 

JS0016 Opening of the Savoy Cinema Cinema, Grantham 

Saturday 
20.07.19 

JS0025 Opening of opening of the new state-
or-the-art bowling alley at Deepings 
Caravan Park  
 

The Deepings Caravan Park  
 
 

Saturday 
20.07.19 

JS0022 SK Football Charity Shield  Grantham  

Tuesday 
23.07.19 

JS0023 Ceremony for the unveiling of a 
commemorative bench by the 
Commonwealth War Graves 

Grantham Cemetery 

 

17

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Council
25 July 2019

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council

        

Meetings of the Cabinet approved since 27 June 2019
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 11 June 2019 as approved by the Cabinet at its 
meeting on 9 July 2019 are provided for Councillors’ information. The minutes of the Cabinet’s 
meeting held on 9 July 2019 will be made available at a future meeting of the Council following 
their approval by Cabinet.

Report Author

Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer

01476 406152

j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Margaret Welton, Senior Research/Support Assistant 12 July 2019

Approved by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal 12 July 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Matthew Lee, The Leader of the Council 12 July 2019

Recommendation to the decision maker

1. Council is asked to note the approved minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 11 
June 2019 as attached at Appendix 1 to this report.

19

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 South Kesteven District Council operates a Leader and Cabinet arrangement as 

established under the Local Government Act 2000. In 2010 the Council adopted the strong 
Leader model under provisions within the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007.

1.2 The Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 set out 
the responsible body for different functions, specifically those functions that are not 
executive functions and those that may be determined by an authority’s executive. All 
other functions are, by default, executive functions and would therefore, under the 
Council’s arrangements, be determined by the Cabinet. The requirements of these 
Regulations mean that at all its meetings, the Cabinet may make some decisions outright 
whilst in other instances it may make recommendations to the Council.

1.3 The approved minutes of the Cabinet’s meetings are made available to the Council to note 
the decisions taken by the Cabinet. The agenda, reports to Cabinet and individual Cabinet 
Member decisions are all available on the Council’s website should Members wish to read 
them.

2 Financial Implications 
2.1 There are no financial implications arising as a result of the report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance

3 Legal and Governance Implications 
3.1 There is a requirement to publish Cabinet decisions in accordance with the Local 

Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012. These minutes have been recorded to inform Members of the 
deliberations at the meeting.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
4.1 This report provides Members with the record of Cabinet meetings. Where appropriate 

analyses in respect of equalities and safeguarding relevant to its decisions will be 
presented to Cabinet with reports as individual issues come forward.

5 Risk and Mitigation
5.1 Risk has been considered as part of the preparation of this report and no specific high 

risks have been identified.

6 Community Safety Implications 
6.1 There are no community safety implications arising from this report. 

7 Background Papers
7.1 There are no background papers relating to this report.

8 Appendices
8.1 Appendix 1: The approved minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 11 June 2019.

20



Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Council 27 June 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  No decision required

21



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes
Cabinet
Tuesday, 11 June 2019

The Leader: Councillor Matthew Lee, The Leader of the Council (Chairman)
The Deputy Leader: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Deputy Leader of the Council 
(Vice-Chairman)

Cabinet Members present

Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations
Councillor Helen Goral, Cabinet Member for Growth
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Planning
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance
Councillor Barry Dobson, Cabinet Member for Housing

Non-Cabinet Members present

Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Charmaine Morgan
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew

Officers

Chief Executive (Aidan Rave)
Strategic Director, Growth (Paul Thomas)
Strategic Director, Resources (Debbie Muddimer)
Strategic Director, Commercial & Operational (Gary Smith)
Assistant Chief Executive, Housing Delivery (Ken Lyon)
Assistant Director, Commercial & Operational (Ian Yates)
Assistant Director, Housing (Harry Rai)
Assistant Director Resources (Richard Wyles)
Interim Head of Legal (Shahin Ismail)
Head of Communications (Bron Madson)
InvestSK (Steve Bowyer)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

1. Apologies

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Reid and Westropp.

23

Appendix 1



2. Minutes of the previous meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 March 2019 were agreed as a correct record.

3. Disclosure of Interests (if any)

No interests were disclosed.

4. Street Lighting (Key Decision)

The Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations presented his report on the 
utilisation of the Invest to Save Reserve for energy efficient LED replacements for 
South Kesteven District Council’s street lighting stock. He explained that the Council 
had approximately 3,500 streetlights that sat within the General Fund. The lights, 
which were generally found in villages, were maintained on a rolling 3-year cycle.

Reference was made to the recommendations of the Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, which had initially been considered by Cabinet on 12 July 2018. 
The draft policy, which was presented at that time, had been considered sound but 
work was required on the financial aspects of the Committee’s proposal. Following 
the completion of that work, Cabinet was being asked to approve £100,000 from the 
Invest to Save Reserve to kick-start a self-perpetuating replacement scheme where 
savings could be reinvested so that each subsequent year there would be more, 
cheaper, energy-efficient lights until the full stock had been replaced. During debate, 
Members expressed support for the proposed levels of investment based on the 
projected payback period of different levels of investment.

In addition to the General Fund stock, there were also approximately 300 lights that 
sat within the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). It was proposed that all HRA lights 
were replaced with energy efficient LED fully-funded through the HRA at a cost of 
approximately £80,000.

The emphasis within the proposed policy was keeping lights turned on and providing 
illumination when and where required that was safe, efficient and well-maintained.

Cabinet members were interested in arrangements for the installation of street lights 
that complemented an area’s heritage. The Cabinet Member for Commercial and 
Operations stated that it was for parish or town councils to invest in the street 
furniture inside which SKDC would fit the necessary equipment.

Reference was made to the Council’s digital strategy and how the proposed 
approach gave the Council sufficient time to explore ‘the internet of things’ through 
which SKDC was looking to create a small network of intelligent street lights. 

Given that the majority of the Council’s lighting stock was in villages, Members 
recognised the proposals as an opportunity for the Council to show its support for 
rural communities.

The Cabinet AGREED to:

24



1. The allocation of £100,000 from the Invest to Save Reserve to facilitate the 
process of converting the General Fund street lights to energy efficient LED as 
part of a 12-year overall programme

2. The replacement of Housing Revenue Account street lights to energy efficient 
LED fully funded from the HRA (at a cost of approximately £80,000)

3. The procurement process and award of the contract/s for the works and 
maintenance (at a whole life contract/s cost of approximately £1,100,000), with 
authority delegated to the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations

4. Approve the Street Lighting Policy appended to the report of the Cabinet 
Member for Commercial and Operations

5. Proposed Statement of Common Ground - Stamford North (Key 
Decision)

The Cabinet Member for Planning presented his report on the draft Statement of 
Common Ground in respect of proposed development at Stamford North. He 
explained that in 2015 the Council commissioned a capacity study to identify 
potential development sites in Stamford. That study identified a 153-hectare parcel of 
land to the north of Stamford that extended into Rutland.

Cabinet Members were advised that the Localism Act 2011 introduced the ‘Duty to 
Co-operate’ while the National Planning Policy Framework placed a requirement on 
local planning authorities to co-operate with one another to masterplan and ensure a 
co-ordinated approach for cross-boundary development.

A development brief would be prepared for the site, which would be brought to each 
Council’s Cabinet. Following public consultation, this would be adopted as a 
Supplementary Planning Document.

The Cabinet Member for Planning drew Members’ attention to the draft Statement of 
Common Ground between South Kesteven District Council, Lincolnshire County 
Council and Rutland County Council, which was appended to his report.

Members noted the comments and recommendations made by the Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
which were circulated at the meeting. It was noted that Appendix C to the draft 
Statement of Common Ground would be supplied following its agreement with other 
partners on the way in which costs would be managed.

Cabinet members were being asked to approve the draft Statement, and because 
South Kesteven was the first authority of the three signatories to consider the 
document, delegate making any minor amendments and the approval of the final 
document to the Cabinet Member for Planning in consultation with the Chairman of 
the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and the Strategic Director, Growth. This was to provide an opportunity to 
update the Statement of Common Ground with any minor changes required by 

25



decision-makers at Rutland County Council and Lincolnshire County Council without 
having to re-present the report to the Cabinet.

In commenting on the proposals, Cabinet Members recognised the importance of co-
operating across local authorities both in respect of planning matters and economics. 

It was AGREED:

1. Cabinet approves the Statement of Common Ground between South 
Kesteven District Council, Rutland County Council and Lincolnshire County 
Council regarding the planning arrangements to be established for the 
proposed development at Stamford North

2. Cabinet delegates the making of any minor modifications that may be 
proposed by Rutland County Council or Lincolnshire County Council and the 
sign-off of the final, amended version of the document, to the Cabinet Member 
for Planning in consultation with the Chairman of the Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
the Strategic Director, Growth

6. Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview & Scrutiny 
Committees

The report of the Leader of the Council informed Cabinet Members that no matters 
had been referred to it by the Council and summarised those matters that had been 
considered by overview and scrutiny committees since the Cabinet’s last meeting on 
7 March 2019.

7. Representations and questions from Non Cabinet Members

The Cabinet Member for Planning was asked for an update on the adoption of roads 
and open spaces on the Persimmon development in Market Deeping. The Cabinet 
Member for Planning said that adoption of roads by Lincolnshire County Council 
would only take place where roads were built to an adoptable standard. Reference 
was made to the practice that had been employed by the developer in other 
instances, where open spaces were handed over to an in-house company. Members 
noted that the development also included allotments, which would become the 
responsibility of the town council. The Cabinet Member for Planning promised to find 
out the current position and provide an answer to the member.

A question was put to the Cabinet Member for Growth which asked for an update on 
when details would come forward for the new leisure centres proposed for the 
Deepings and Stamford. The Councillor was advised that negotiations were 
underway on potential sites. The timing of the announcement of the site would 
depend on the progress of those negotiations. Members were advised, however, that 
a report would be brought to Council on 27 June 2019 seeking budget to progress 
the project through the development of a business case for the leisure programme 
with a report being brought back to Cabinet later in 2019.

26



One member referred to the earlier agenda item on street lighting, asking about 
arrangements for provision of heritage street lights in conservation areas and how 
that could be accommodated in Grantham, where there was no parish or town 
council to make that request or provide the street furniture. A question was also 
asked about the Council’s policy for keeping lights turned on overnight. The Cabinet 
Member for Commercial and Operations was asked to talk to the Member about 
those matters outside the meeting.

A final question was put to the Leader concerning information that had been 
requested during the previous term by the Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
about the priorities and deliverables for InvestSK. The Leader responded stating that 
the matter was reserved for the new Companies Committee, the role of which would 
be to look at all the Council’s companies and understand how they were performing. 
Issues around business plans would be dealt with through the Companies Committee 
together with how the companies manage their performance and targets. The Leader 
also stated that if information was not forthcoming when requested by an overview 
and scrutiny committee, the matter should be taken up with the Chief Executive.

8. Cabinet Forward Plan

Cabinet Members noted the report of the Leader of the Council, appended to which 
was the Cabinet’s Forward Plan. The Forward Plan gave an indication of the items 
that would be presented to Cabinet over the following 12-month period. The plan also 
included items that were scheduled to be considered at meetings of the Council 
during that period.

9. Items raised by Cabinet Members including reports on Key and Non-Key 
Decisions taken under Delegated Powers.

The Cabinet noted the report of the Leader of the Council which informed Cabinet 
Members of decisions that had been taken by individual Members since the last 
meeting of the Cabinet was held on 7 March 2019.

10. Close of meeting

The meeting was closed at 16:36.

27



This page is intentionally left blank



Council
25 July 2019

Notice of Motion
Councillor Phil Dilks

        

This motion addresses issues arising from the Council being ‘inadvertently’ misled by its current 
representative on the Lincolnshire Police and Crime Panel which led to councillors voting down a 
motion based on what has proved to be false information.
 
The background and some of the issues this incident has raised are as follows:

At the Council meeting on 27th June, in response to questions by a member of the public, the 
Deputy Leader admitted that the ‘announcement’ by Councillor Ray Wootten to Council on 23rd 
May that an extra £10 million funding had been secured for Lincolnshire Police in the current year 
was not true. 

1. It is now clear that when councillors voted down a motion on 23rd May calling on MPs to 
lobby Government for more funding in the face of cuts to police numbers and rising crime 
across South Kesteven in good faith, it was on the basis of false information provided by 
Councillor Wootten

2. On 27th June, the Deputy Leader assured councillors that Councillor Wootten wished to 
make a statement to Council regarding what he understood to be a ‘miscommunication’ 
between Councillor Wootten and the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC). The Deputy 
Leader said given the circumstances – and despite the defeat of the motion on 23rd May - 
policing across South Kesteven should be scrutinised by the Council and suggested inviting 
the PCC to give evidence. 

3. Councillor Wootten was not in attendance at the 27th June Council meeting when he was 
named in a written question submitted in advance on the issue and read out under the 
agenda item Public Open Forum agenda item. Councillor Wootten arrived later but then left 
the meeting and was absent for Members Open Questions when the issue was raised 
before again returning to his seat.

4. As well as falsely announcing to Council on 23rd May that an extra £10 million had been 
secured for Lincolnshire Police in the current year, Councillor Wootten also assured Council 
on 23rd May that “There will be NO CUTS to police numbers in the current year.” However, 
responses from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner to Freedom of Information 
requests demonstrate that contrary to Councillor Wootten’s assertions, Lincolnshire Police 
expects to be employing some 50 FEWER police officers at the end of the current financial 
year than there were at its start.

 
Council notes that Cllr Wootten was previously forced to resign as Chairman of the Lincolnshire 
Police and Crime Panel after he ‘inadvertently’ misled MPs when giving evidence to a 
Parliamentary Select Committee.
 
However, following the latest incident, on 28th June, the very day after our Council publicly 
admitted it had been ‘inadvertently misled’ by Councillor Wootten, it is understood he was elected 
Deputy Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel.

29

Agenda Item 8a

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


At the same 28th June meeting of the Panel, the Police and Crime Commissioner warned that 
Lincolnshire Police faces a £6.5 million shortfall next year unless current funding levels are 
enhanced.

Meantime, there is increasing public concern over rising crime levels across South Kesteven as 
evidenced at www.police.uk

For example, earlier this year the Neighbourhood Policing Panel serving The Deepings expressed 
no confidence in Lincolnshire Police earlier this summer. Over one weekend earlier this month 
local residents complained about lack of police response and living in fear as a gang tore through 
the community committing a catalogue of crime over three days. 

Given all the circumstances outlined above, this Council resolves to:

1. Instruct the Chief Executive to write to all Lincolnshire MPs to lobby for a fairer funding 
settlement for Lincolnshire Police particularly given the Police and Crime Commissioner’s 
warning of a £6.5 million funding gap next year.

2. Formally invite the Police and Crime Commissioner to an evidence-based scrutiny of all 
aspects of crime and policing across South Kesteven. Council requests that in light of 
recent events and to ensure public confidence, it would be inappropriate for scrutiny of 
policing to be chaired by Councillor Ray Wootten.

3. Urge the Leader of the Council to consider replacing Councillor Wootten as the Council’s 
representative on the Police and Crime Panel to ensure that the public – and this council – 
can have confidence that future information provided regarding policing and police funding 
is accurate and properly researched.

30

http://www.police.uk/

	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2019
	5 Communications (including Chairman's Announcements)
	6 Meetings of the Cabinet
	Minutes , 11/06/2019 Cabinet

	8a Councillor Phil Dilks

